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Question
Number

Date 
Received Question Answer

CC-1 7/5/2021
2:48 PM

The project drawings Sheet G000 – Fire 
Notes #2 states the “Contractor is responsible 
to contract with Owner approved…fire 
protection company to provide tenant fire 
sprinkler and alarm buildout”.  Please 
provide a list of the Owner’s approved Fire 
Sprinkler and Fire Alarm subcontractors that 
will be allowed to bid on this project.

Any Fire Sprinkler and Alarm contractors licensed in Nevada are acceptable.

CC-2 7/5/2021
2:50 PM

Sheet G000 states there are NO deferred 
submittals.  Please confirm that the Building 
Authority having jurisdiction over this 
address does not want to review and approve 
the Fire Alarm drawings and the Fire 
Sprinkler Drawings.

There are no deferred Structural submittals only.  Fire Alarm and Fire Sprinkler 
drawings will be required to submit for building department review.

RC-1 7/8/2021
9:45 AM

Is there still a warranty on the roof? No

RC-2 7/8/2021
9:45 AM

Will there be an area for staging? Yes. We will set up staging in the south parking lot.

RC-3 7/8/2021
9:45 AM

Will there be on-site parking? No. Street parking will be available on Wellness Way.

RC-4 7/9/2021
9:18 AM

What are the badging and security 
requirements for subcontractors and 
construction personnel during the 
construction of the project?

Contractors and subs will be allowed free access during bussiness hours through the one 
man door located in the construction area. 
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BU-1 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

I understand that we are to have payment and 
performance bonds, are we to also have a bid 
bond? If we are, would you like that 
submitted along with our bid forms as well?

Yes. As the Project exceeds the simplified acquisition threshold and is federally funded, 
a bid bond (guarantee) is required as follows:
A bid guarantee from each Bidder equivalent to five percent (5%) of the bid price. The 
‘‘bid guarantee’’ must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond or certified 
check accompanying the bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of the 
bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.  

BU-2 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Are we required to provide a list of our 1% 
and 5% subcontractor lists?

Yes, Bidder shall submit the name of each Subcontractor which will be paid an amount 
exceeding one percent (1%) and five percent (5%) of the total base bid amount. Bidder 
must verify prior to submitting its bid that all subcontractors listed are properly 
licensed. Bidders may use the Nevada Office of the Labor Commissioner's 
SUBCONTRACTOR LIST FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS form as a template.

BU-3 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

The required bid documents seem extensive, 
can you provide an example of everything 
you would like typed out as far as what you 
have called out for? A template or 
something?

Section IV: Instructions to Bidders is the template.
IV.A indicates, "Bid must fully answer all questions and include all required
information and documentation presented as follows." 
Refer to attached Sample Bid Format. Bidders may use this format or choose another 
format. 

BU-4 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Please provide us a list of any proprietary 
contractors; fire alarm, fire sprinkler, roofing, 
mechanical controls, etc.

We have no proprietary contrators. Any contractors licensed in Nevada are acceptable.

BU-5 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

As far as permits, who will be pulling them 
and paying for them?

The permits are currently ready for pick up with the city. The awarded contractor will 
pay the fee of $11,321.40

BU-6 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Will we be required to have our subs get 
badged? 

All contractors will be provided with a contractors badge for identification only. The 
badge will not be needed for or allow access. 

BU-7 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

What is the parking situation? Parking will be on the street, Wellness Way.

BU-8 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Where is the laydown area for our material 
and where we can put our dumpster(s)?

The staging area will be in the south parking lot.

BU-9 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

What are the working hours? The working hours should be no earlier than 6:00 am and no later than 4:00 pm.
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BU-10 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

What are the security requirements? For 
example, are we to leave our material outside 
in our laydown area or can we leave in the 
working area? Also, if we are to leave it 
outside, will SNHD provide a security guard 
to watch the material or are we to provide our 
own temp fencing?

You can leave material outside or in the work area as needed. SNHD will not be 
providing after hours security.

BU-11 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Are we allowed to use existing facilities such 
as restrooms or should we provide our own 
temp facilities?

Contractors will need to provide temporary facilites in the south parking lot.

BU-12 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

As per keynote 17 on A100, GC is to provide 
a stainless steel wall mounted pegboard. 
Please provide a spec on this pegboard 
otherwise we will all be carrying something 
different and the prices will vary. 

Grainger pegboard, wall mouting, 32 number pegs. Item#55NZ97. Mfr 
model#GRV2430 UNSPSC#41122805

BU-13 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

On the door schedule on A150, it calls for 
doors listed as door type A to receive a  ST-1 
finish, but the finish legend does not define 
what ST-1 is. What is ST-1; stone, paint, etc?

Please see attached revised door schedule SK-1.  

BU-14 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

On the door hardware set on A150, it calls 
for hardware set 01CR to have a card reader 
that is to be by the security contractor, who is 
the security contractor you would like us to 
use?

The card reader will be installed by SNHD staff. Please provide box with pull string.
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BU-15 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

As per keynote 1 on D100, the chain link 
fence is to be removed by owner, who will be 
responsible for patching back the concrete 
from where the posts are removed? Will the 
owner also be demoing the footings? If so, 
who will be responsible for pouring new 
concrete in those areas?

The current fencing is secured to the floor with wedge anchors. Contractor will be 
responsible to fill holes. There are no footings.

BU-16 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

As per keynote 3 on MD100, GC is to 
relocate return grille per new work plan in 
room 131 (computer assembly room). 
However, on the architectural floor plan, it 
says that the area is NIC (not in contract). 
Please verify the wall, floor and ceiling finish 
in the area so we know what needs to be 
patched back and maybe a photo of the 
existing condition of the room since we did 
not go into it during the job walk.

There is no mechanical work required in Room 131.

BU-17 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Please provide RCP of second floor as well 
so GC can know what to patch back when 
bringing power from panel on second floor to 
first floor (if necessary) and what to patch 
back when removing RTU and doing 
associated mechanical work on second floor.

Architecturally, there is no work at the second floor RCP. 
Electrical engineer's response: 
There is an electrical connection to a panel in the Storage Room on the second floor.  
This new feeder should drop down through the floor and I don’t see where there will be 
any impacts with the second floor ceiling. 
M&P engineer's response: 
There is no mechanical or plumbing scope on the second floor. All roof work occurs on 
the low roof and does not pass through level 2.  

BU-18 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

On sheet A300, the hot lab is being called for 
ACT-2, yet the pattern that is around it looks 
like ACT-1. Which type of ceiling will be 
used in the Hot Lab (room 144)?

There is no pattern difference between ACT-1 and ACT-2.  They are both 2x4 tiles. Hot 
Lab ceiling will be ACT-2, see finish tag on RCP.
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BU-19 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

On sheet A100, it shows that the reception 
and office (rooms 131 and 132) will not be in 
contract, yet on the reflected ceiling plan 
(A300), it shows us re-doing the ceiling. 
What is the complete scope of work that will 
be done in the ‘Not In Contract” areas? 

Room 131 and 132 are not in contract.  There is no ceiling work in these two rooms.

BU-20 7/9/2021
8:21 AM

Please provide a detail for the concrete pour 
backs where the new waste and vent lines  
will be installed in the existing slab on grade

Please see attached SK-2.
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SECTION IV:  INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

Bids that do not comply with the ITB requirements will be rejected as nonresponsive. 

A. Preparation and Submission: 

Bid must fully answer all questions and include all required information and documentation 
presented as follows: 

1. Cover Letter  (Prepared/submitted a cover letter including the elements indicated)

Bid must include a cover letter containing the ITB number, subject and issue date; Bidder’s
name, address, telephone number, and website, if available; Bidder’s authorized
representative’s (principal-in-charge) name, mailing address, telephone number, fax
number, and email address; and a concise, sufficiently detailed statement of interest.

2. General Requirements (Tab 1)

1. Complete and submit Attachment B - Bid Form.

Attachment B - Bid Form (Completed Form submitted)

2. Provide Nevada Business License and Nevada Contractor's License.

Nevada Business License (Copy submitted)

Nevada Contractor’s License (Copy submitted)

3. Has Bidder ever been terminated from a project before it was completed? If yes,
concisely describe the circumstances related to the termination(s).

No

4. Has Bidder ever been disciplined or fined by the Nevada State Contractors’ Board or
another state or federal agency for conduct relating to its ability to perform work like
this ITB? If yes, concisely describe the circumstances related to the occurrence(s).

5. Has Bidder ever been excluded or debarred from doing business with a federal or state
agency? If yes, concisely describe the circumstances related to the occurrence(s).

6. Has Bidder ever been disqualified from being awarded a contract pursuant to NRS
338.017, 338.13895, 338.1475 or 408.333? If yes, concisely describe the circumstances
related to the occurrence(s).

3. Company Description and Qualifications (Tab 2)

1. Description of Company (Bidder)

a. Company name:

Preferred Construction Co. LLC  

i) How many years has Bidder operated under its current name?

24 years 
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CONCRETE FLOOR LEVEL 
WITH EXISTING

#4 @ 12" O.C. E.W. (2) 
BARS MIN.

#4 DOWELS EMBEDDED 4" 
MIN INTO EX. SLAB W/ 
SIMPSON SET XP EPOXY 
PER ESR 2508 @ 24" O.C. 
EA. SIDE OF TRENCH. 
LENGTH EQUAL TO 
TRENCH WIDTH MINUS 3"

RECOMPACT ANY 
UNDISTURBED SOIL 
UNDER SLAB. WHERE 
PLUMBING LINES ARE 
INSTALLED. FULLY 
COMPACT EARTH BELOW 
PIPES BEFORE 
PLACEMENT.

CUT SLAB AS REQUIRED 
REFER TO PLUMBING 
DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION
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